

## **COMMUNITY BOARD 6, QUEENS**

104-01 METROPOLITAN AVENUE · FOREST HILLS, NY 11375-4136

TEL: (718) 263-9250 · FAX: (718) 263-2211

QN06@CB.NYC.GOV

WWW.NYC.GOV/CB6Q



HEATHER BEERS-DIMITRIADIS

DONOVAN RICHARDS
BOROUGH PRESIDENT

CHRISTINE NOLAN DISTRICT MANAGER

# CB 6 MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 9, 2024

#### PRESENT

HEATHER BEERS-DIMITRIADIS, CHAIR PETER BEADLE, 1<sup>ST</sup> VICE CHAIR KEITH ENGEL, 2<sup>ND</sup> VICE CHAIR MARK LASTER, 3<sup>RD</sup> VICE CHAIR SALUA BAIDA, SECRETARY OF ADMINISTRATION L.T. CIACCIO, SECRETARY OF FINANCE JOHN DERESZEWSKI, PARLIAMENTARIAN

K. IMAS E. ALFONSECA P. RODRIGUEZ R. ASHE M. FERNANDEZ KONIGSBERG S. ROLNICK A. AYON T. GAVRIELOF M. SALTON K. BATRA K. LY G. SANDOVAL H. BIRNBAUM P. MORGAN D. SCHANTZ H. CHAIN H. SCHONHAUT S. MUNAWAR G. CHEN N. PIENKOWSKA J. SILVA K. CLARK J. POORAN A. PRATAP SHAH L. DAVIS J. PRATT M. TUCKER D. RACHNAEV **B. GROSSBERG** 

## **ABSENT**

D. ARONOV
E. SHVARTSMAN\*
J. AVILA
B. WINSTEAD\*
S. JAIN\*
E. WONG \*
M. LASHLEY-KABORE
DR. R. MEHRRA

## **OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE**

\*EXCUSED ABSENCE

CHRISTINE NOLAN DISTRICT MANAGER

MARIA CONCOLINO COMMUNITY SERVICE AIDE

MICHAEL CARLIER OFFICE OF QUEENS BOROUGH PRESIDENT DONOVAN RICHARDS

JORDAN GOLDES OFFICE OF CONGRESS MEMBER GRACE MENG
GIANNA VALENTE OFFICE OF ASSEMBLY MEMBER ANDREW HEVESI
JAVIER FIGAROA OFFICE OF DISTRICT ATTORNEY MELINDA KATZ
SEAN McCABE OFFICE OF SENATOR JOSEPH P. ADDABBO

KEVIN McALEER OFFICE OF COUNCIL MEMBER LYNN SCHULMAN

This meeting was held in-person with a limited virtual option via Webex for individuals with extraordinary circumstances. The following CB6 Members joined the meeting via Webex: Diana Rachnaev, L.T. Ciaccio and Shari Rolnick. The meeting will be recorded and posted on YouTube (www.tinyurl.com/cb6youtube).

Chair Heather Beers-Dimitriadis opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.

#### **GOOD AND WELFARE**

#### **CB 6 MEMBERS**

Chair Dimitriadis reported for Board Member Edwin Wong:

• FDNY open house located at 111-02 Queens Boulevard, Sunday, October 20th from 1-3pm.

## Heidi Chain:

- Student Poster and Essay Contest, Celebrate Diversity deadline to submit your poster and essay is October 15<sup>th</sup> at 112th Precinct, eligibility you must live in the community. The winner will be presented at our November 20<sup>th</sup> Precinct Council meeting which will be held at Queens Borough Hall. Along with a theme of Celebrating Diversity with different ethnic foods.
- 112<sup>th</sup> Precinct Community Council Meeting will take place on Wednesday, October 16<sup>th</sup> at 7:30pm at American Legion Hall.

Heidi reported for Board Member Edwin Wong:

• November 11<sup>th</sup>, Veterans Day there will be a breakfast held for veterans at the Forest Hills Westside Tennis Club from 9-10:30am. If you would like to volunteer, reach out to Edwin Wong.

#### Jean Silva:

- Flushing Meadow Corona Park Conservancy on Sunday, November 3<sup>rd</sup> Halloween Scavenger Hunt at Morrel Playground.
- Austin Street and 77 Drive signs have gone up loading only; several cars have received parking tickets. If you
  have a placard, you can park there to unload your car. Standing only sign you can't park there even with a
  placard.

#### Mark Laster:

- Composting update The Forest Hills Green Team hopes to re-open their food scrap drop-off site by mid to
  late October by Commonpoint Queens. The Compost Collective, located on Yellowstone and Kessel Street,
  remains open on Saturdays from 11am to 1pm. Mandatory Composting for all five boroughs officially started
  this past Monday and has existed in Queens prior to this mandate. If buildings do not comply by April 1, 2025,
  they will be subjected to penalties.
- Friends of Yellowstone Park, a group that is starting up to do work at Yellowstone Park, which is being lead by a local resident Ben Spanner, is planning two upcoming activities: October 19<sup>th</sup> at 9am a clean up of the park and October 31 at 3pm there will be a Halloween Toddler parade. Decorate your stroller and bring trick and treats to distribute.
- Metro Village is having a clean up on October 19<sup>th</sup> at 10am.
- Forest Hills Green Team has picked up daffodil bulbs and is in discussions with both Friends of Yellowstone Park and Metro Village to plant bulbs at these locations.
- Central Queens Against Hate held their fourth Breaking Bread Building Bonds luncheon on Sunday, September 15<sup>th</sup>. There were over 50 people in attendance; there were six groups, one of which spoke Mandarin. The feedback was very positive, the next Breaking Bread Building Bonds luncheon is scheduled for February 9<sup>th</sup> at 2pm.
- NYC City Council Intro. 654, "Affordable Housing Rehabilitation Program". In the wake of the expiration of the "J-51" program providing tax incentives for multifamily residential building renovations, the NY State

Legislature passed the "Affordable Housing Rehabilitation Program" in the 1023 legislature session. A replacement with stronger protections for tenants and more narrow eligibility, this program offers tax abatements for capital projects in multifamily affordable housing. It is now up to the City Council to approve it via Intro 654 (Sanchez). Although the program applies to affordable rentals as well, this information will focus on its applicability for co-ops and condos. Note: unlike the previous "J-51", this program has substantial protections for tenants, including requiring 15 years of rent stabilization, prohibiting MCI rent hikes and attestations against tenant harassment. Thank you, Councilmember Lynn Schulman, for signing onto this bill. If you would like to know if your building would be eligible if this bill passes, you could reach out to me at <a href="mailto:fhgtinc@gmail.com">fhgtinc@gmail.com</a>.

- The next virtual meeting of the Forest Hills Green Team is Monday, October 21st at 6pm.
- I want to acknowledge the 50<sup>th</sup> anniversary of Harry Chapin's song, "Cats in the cradle." For any parent, I would strongly encourage you to listen to the song.

#### Salua Baida

- Hand and Hand is a coalition of employers of domestic employees, gardeners, nannies, housekeepers, etc. They advocate for these workers; they are advocating for the Secure Job Act which aims to protect New York City workers from being unjustly or arbitrarily fired. It ensures that employers must provide a valid reason and notice before discharging an employee, promoting fairness and job security.
- Collin Smith, outreach specialist for council airport opportunity for New York and New Jersey. He sends out job postings for airports. I will share more information regarding job postings.

#### Pedro Rodriguez

• Thanked everyone who came out for the Central Queens Micro-Mobility, this past Saturday, October 4th. We had twenty people of all different ages. We spoke about micro-mobility in Central Queens.

### Matt Fernandez-Konigsberg

When we were speaking about The Billard Club liquor license a discussion was brought up about them using the megaphone outside creating a loud nuisance. This is continuing; it was addressed but I don't think it was addressed to the right people.

#### Karen Imas

Sunday, November 10<sup>th</sup> in Forest Park, the Queensway 5K, this is an event held with a non-profit called Fast Feet. It is geared towards young people in running. It is in collaboration with the Friends of the Queensway to introduce folks to the project. There is an event link called Bright Link, which will be share with board members.

#### **PUBLIC FORUM**

Chair Beers-Dimitriadis reported that the board is going to move into the public comments. We have 6 public speakers. Peter Beadle will keep time and Chair Dimitriadis will call the public speakers in the order the signed up.

## JP Wojciechowski, New York City Civic Engagement Commission

We are a city agency that was approved in 2018 by a voter ballot initiated. Our job is to restore civic trust and strengthen democracy in New York City. We have a few areas of focus that I want to brief you on. The people's money is citywide participatory budgeting. We are entering the idea generation phase which is where the New Yorkers get to decide where to spend some of the city's mayoral budget, for expense projects. It begins October 11<sup>th</sup> through November. Poll site assistance program. We offer Russian interpretation at the poll site for CB6 on November 2-3 and on election day November 5th. Training opportunities for community

board members in language access training, and language online services. If any constituent needs interpretation services, this is something that is offered through the Civic Engagement Commission.

A suggestion was made to JP regarding participatory budgeting. There were many ballots for the participatory budget, and a few were made to the ballot, which is the nature of the process. What I would like to ask is that the people who participated in the budget receive a follow-up email about what was chosen on the ballot. JP will bring that up. Another question was asked, what are the other languages at different poll sites? Spanish is at every poll site, through Local Law 30, some other languages that are not covered under Local Law 30 are offered at other poll sites that are determined through the census. Another suggestion was made that the interrupters stand outside the poll sites, where some people might not see them through entering another door. The services need to be inside.

#### **Robert Preven**

My issue is Queens Boulevard and Yellowstone Boulevard, we can't turn from Yellowstone Boulevard to Manhattan-bound traffic. I would like to propose a solution to this problem. What we can do to eliminate this situation is to stagger the lights. Let one traffic pattern from the south on Queens Boulevard go from the police station on Yellowstone Boulevard and stop oncoming traffic instead of having two-way traffic at once. If you stop on one side of Queens Boulevard, then you can turn left or right without interference. This has already been done in other areas of Queens i.e. Hillside Avenue and 188 Street. This technique has been done for many years. There hasn't been an accident at that intersection of Yellowstone and Queens Boulevard for many years. The following question was asked. Would these be independent phases? Yellowstone Boulevard would be phase one, everyone would be going northbound at the police station, then everyone going southbound would have a turn going towards the police station, and then Queens Boulevard would go. Queens Boulevard East and West you wouldn't have to interfere with that, it is just northbound to southbound. When you are leaving going towards the police station going towards Queens Boulevard turning west, you would stop the traffic northbound.

#### **Edward Brennan**

We need to talk about the cannabis vote for this evening. I grew up at a time when drugs were prevalent, people smoking marijuana, taking pills, uppers, downers, speed, and heroine. I grew up with a lot of people who have passed away. The media plays it down, this is a stepping stone and it's not a good thing. I see children going to school, being dropped off by their parents and the parents are smoking marijuana. The children have to be smelling and inhaling the smoke in the car. It is not good; I am asking the community board to vote no on the cannabis license at tonight's meeting. It has got to stop, it's getting worse.

#### Irinia Vovsha

Everyone knows me, I represent 994 people who signed my petition. If you have any doubts that the petition was signed, here you are. We live in an upside-down world. We ask questions about what is going on and can't find the answers that make sense. Very often I feel like Alice in Wonderland, I feel like I am going down the rabbit hole. The more confused I became at the last meeting; Ms. Heather directed my husband to NYPD to seek the documents. The representative stated that 75 decibels which is construction site noise was allowed by the NYPD Commissioner. When were the laws changed that laws are made by the police? They are to protect and enforce the laws and protect the citizens who diligently pay their taxes and bills from illegal activities. Instead, the police protect the concertgoers, our abusers 8,000 people. 900 people who signed my petition living in the area by the stadium are forced to listen to the unbearable noise, forty times a year. We need to endure the public toilet made by the concertgoers by urinating, vomiting, and defecating on our property. I wonder if the judges are supposed to protect the law not to make up excuses. One judge denying the injunction for the Concern Citizens said I'm confused. One lady said she hears the noise, and another lady said

she doesn't hear the noise. The measurements were made and indicated a huge violation of the noise code. The judge is judging by opinion not by the facts. Another judge gives instructions to muffle the concerts, what does this mean? There is a law that says 42 decibels is based on the scientists' decisions. The concertgoers are sitting on our porches and doing terrible things. They are loud and throw trash on our lawns and the homeowner has to clean it up.

#### **David Deturris**

I am a reporter for the New York City news service. My colleagues and I are covering the neighborhoods in Forest Hills and Rego Park. I am currently working on a piece about the Department of Sanitation's roll-out of composting bins in high-rise buildings. I would appreciate it if anyone had the time after the meeting to speak to me about this program.

#### The following comments were submitted for inclusion in the minutes.

#### Odette J. Wilken, Wired Broadband, Inc.

I'm Odette Wilkens, President and General Counsel of Wired Broadband, Inc., a non-profit in Forest Hills focusing on safe technology for the public. I also have been a technology transactional attorney for over 20 years. I am also a long-time resident of Forest Hills, at least since 1976. A 5G Tower has been proposed across from 69-23 Juno Street on the sidewalk of P.S. 144, right next to a children's playground. I oppose the installation of a 5G Tower at this site for several reasons: It is only feet away from the historic school structure which is eligible for the National Register of Historic Places and will have an adverse impact on the historical aesthetics which qualify the school for such eligibility. It is contrary to the covenants of the Van Court Association, which was originally managed by the Forest Hills Corporation, in order to continue the architectural integrity of the Gardens outside of the Gardens. The 5G Tower will destroy that architectural integrity. (See attached submissions made to the NYS Historic Preservation Office.) Public safety - Cell towers are electrical installations and have been known to catch on fire. Therefore, people need time to escape. The 5G Towers are cell towers with 5 bays for concentrated telecommunications equipment. If a 5G Tower catches on fire, and it is near or on school grounds or just feet from a window, how will people, especially children be able to escape in time? The problem is that firefighters cannot put out the fire unless the power to the cell tower is turned off, otherwise they can be electrocuted. As this can take up to an hour, the fire may have the opportunity to spread rapidly. The 5G Tower stands at 32-1/2' with 5 bays to house multiple wireless antennas from multiple telecom carriers. The 5th bay is for free Wi-Fi which only extends about 500'. Sixteen community boards of the 40 CBs at play disapproved or voted for moratoria. The FCC notified CityBridge that they cannot construct 5G Towers unless they first go through environmental and historic preservation reviews under two federal laws – the National Historic Preservation Act, and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). You can comment on the 5G towers as part of the general public, or you can request to be a consulting party. I am a consulting party for Forest Hills and Rego Park. I submitted comments opposing the proposed 5G tower in front of PS 144 on 69th Ave on historic preservation grounds in Nov/Dec 2023. It got front page coverage in the Forest Hills Times – 9 columns of coverage – and the site was rejected by the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). However, CityBridge is now proposing it just a few feet away. I submitted comments to SHPO in Sept 2024 in opposition. SHPO ruled in favor of CityBridge. That needs to be contested. If anyone is interested in contesting the placement of a 5G Tower in front of the playground at PS 144, please let me know at owilkens@wiredbroadband.org, 646.939.6855. PS 144 Col. Jeromus Remsen School is a local elementary school in Forest Hills. I likened the proposed 5G tower to a brutalist style of architecture which is minimalist and rejects "nostalgia in architecture." I discussed how the Forest Hills Gardens and its environs encompassing PS 144 is all about nostalgia in architecture, conjuring up an English countryside with Tudorstyled homes. The school building was built in 1931 by John Kennedy & Co., known for constructing Catholic Schools. The building has been designated by SHPO as eligible for the National Register of Historic Places. PS

144 was named after Col. Jeromus Remsen, an American Revolutionary War colonel (1735-1790). He was recorded by the Continental Congress of 1774 as a leadership figure in the American Revolutionary War. Remsen is buried nearby in an area adjoining 69-43 Trotting Course Lane, in the Remsen Family Cemetery, a designated landmark by the NYC Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) in 1981. The 5G tower's stark gray metal bottom and white plastic top bear no likeness to the warm beige color, or the brick or material, or architectural detail of the school structure. Of note is also the possibility of the falling off of the light plastic which is to cover each of the 5 bays where antennas are to be placed, as reported by CityBridge in a NYC community board meeting. That will further mar the aesthetics, with the towers likely taking on the appearance over time of having missing teeth. The area in which PS 144 is located is an exclusive area known as the Vandeveer, as well as the Forest Hills Court. Since 1923, this area encompassing PS 144 was under the administration of the Forest Hills Gardens Corporation, until the Forest Hills Van Court Association, Inc. undertook to enforce its homeowners' covenants in 1969. Stringent requirements are placed on any aesthetic changes to the houses and streetscapes. A 5G Tower would clash with the aesthetic and architectural integrity of the streetscape which the restrictive covenants have been intended to preserve since 1923 and that continue to this day. The Forest Hills Gardens, one of the most iconic areas in NYC for architecture and city planning, adjoins the 500' penumbra. "Conceived in 1909, Forest Hills Gardens was the collaborative creation of the landscape architect and planner Frederick Law Olmsted Jr. and the architect and housing reform activist Grosvenor Atterbury. It sits on 142 acres. In 1910 the Russell Sage Foundation bought the land to create a community for working class people to get away from the ugliness and grime of Manhattan. The 5G Tower would clash with the look and feel of The Gardens' Tudor-styled architectural motifs that echo throughout the adjoining communities encompassing PS 144; it would certainly not be considered "unifying street furniture" and would lead to discord on the streetscape. The 5G Tower would create the very kind of blight and ugliness that the Russell Sage Foundation sought to prevent, the kind of street "chaos" intended to be avoided then and now in the Vandemeer area encompassing PS 144. Here are instructions to file either as part of the general public or as a consulting party. Deadlines have either gone or are fast approaching. So, if you're interested in filing comments, here are some quidelines: For General Public: You can comment on ANY site listed at <a href="https://citybridgelink5g.azurewebsites.net">https://citybridgelink5g.azurewebsites.net</a>. Send comments by email to: citybridgelink5g@ebiconsulting.com, Olivia Brazee <Olivia.Brazee@parks.ny.gov, Sloane Bullough sloane.bullough@parks.ny.gov. For Consulting Parties: First, to apply as a consulting party, send an email to all three: NEPA-NHPA@link.nyc, sderrick@ebiconsulting.com, tammi.grant@boldyn.com. State the name of your organization and why you should be a consulting party (with "a demonstrated interest" due to legal, economic or historic preservation concerns). The geographic area you are interested in (could be one or more blocks, neighborhoods, historic districts, community districts, etc.) If you don't receive a timely response (within 3 days) or have any questions: send an email to Tammi Grant at tammi.grant@boldyn.com, cc your email to: Chris Murray at cmurray@ebiconsulting.com. Please contact me for more information and with any questions. We also hold weekly meetings in NYC; please let me know if you'd like to attend.

#### **Emily Otalora**

I am writing today as a resident of the neighborhood who recently was alerted by a fellow neighbor, not you or OTI, about the new proposed location of a Link 5G tower directly in front of P.S. 144 on Juno Street and an uncomfortable close proximity to my home. It is well documented that the Radiation emitted from these towers is much more powerful than any of the devices that we use in our homes, the biggest difference being household items operate for short intervals of time, whereas these towers are operating 24/7. The Science is there; corporations choose to ignore it or write it off. At yesterday's environmental committee meeting, where OTI gave a presentation on the proposed location, they stated that they consider some factors, areas prone to flooding being one of them. Let me make it perfectly clear: while the Board does not have these streets on their flood zone maps, we flood, and with the new school construction replacing the green space that could absorb

some of the rising waters, the water levels now not only cause sewer backups into our furnished homes but flooding through the windows and doors into our homes. They claimed that a provider who could not be named came to them and said that there is a need for cell service in the area. Their mission is equity driven. They claim there is evidence of a need, yet they are unable to provide/share it as proof. As a resident, I know our service and access are more than fine, as are my neighbors. Even with the expansion of the school, service in the area hasn't experienced any severe outages, so again, we ask where evidence of need. In regard to the historic preservation, it doesn't matter if they move the tower from Kessel Street and 69th Ave onto Juno Street, or as they mentioned, a possible other location being further east on Juno St and 70th Ave, the surrounding area of P.S. 144 is part of the Forest Hills Van Court Association a covenant that each homeowner within its boundaries has them included in their house deed. The Association was formed in 1969 to continue the enforcement of covenant restrictions dating back to 1923. Their goal is to maintain the architectural aesthetics and beautification of the neighborhood, and this tower doesn't align with any of the covenant's bylaws. Our community doesn't want a radiation poison tower anywhere near their homes, places of worship, or educational institutions. Nor does this quiet residential area need one.

Chair Heather Beers-Dimitriadis closed the public forum and reminded the public that tonight's meeting isn't a town hall and won't be taking further comments or questions from the community.

#### **MINUTES**

The minutes for the September 12th meeting have one correction, Herb Schonhaut's comment was changed from "the stop signs on 108th Street were changed to traffic lights, so that pedestrians could walk safely"; to "the last stop signs on the entire stretch of 108th Street were at 65 Road, and these were just changed to traffic lights. The most important result of this is that pedestrians can now cross busy 108th Street safely." Herb Schonhaut asked why District Manager Christine Nolan's name isn't on the top along with the Board Members. Another suggestion that Herb made was to have the staff members who attended the meeting on the minutes and also at the end of the minutes, to put the time that the meeting adjourned and submit the name of the person that did the minutes. Martha Tucker made a motion to accept the minutes with the correction, and Howard Birnbaum seconded the motion. All were in favor.

#### **CHAIR'S REPORT**

Chair Heather Beers-Dimitriadis stated over the past several weeks we have seen a mass exodus from City Hall after an unprecedented number of subpoenas were served and raids on members at the highest level of leadership in our city. I recognize how unsettling and frustrating this can be. Please understand this will not change how we as a city agency continue to fulfill our Charter-mandated role. We will continue to advocate and fight for the programs our community requires. We will continue to address the needs that are brought to us by the members of this community. That is not going to change, many of you may have concerns that might be political in nature, we understand. We are according to the Charter of the City of New York a non-political body. These concerns are best brought to the attention of your local elected officials. If you have concerns, we encourage you to do so. It is important to engage in that process.

Some housekeeping notes, reach out to the office if you have any questions about any items found on the agenda that you're not sure about. Don't wait for the meeting. In this process city government is complex. You can attend any committee meeting; you don't have to be on that committee. If you see something that looks very interesting and wants to attend in person or on WebEx, let the office know. On the agenda of the committee meeting, there is a link, you can just join when the meeting is about to begin.

Over the next few months, there will be two ULURP actions coming before the board in November and December. I would highly encourage you to attend the Land Use Committee meetings. If you have any questions, please reach out to me, Christine, or Keith who chairs the committee.

#### **DISTRICT MANGER'S REPORT**

District Manager Christine Nolan reported the following:

The Logo Competition has ended. The PR, and Social Media Committee will be meeting this month to go over the entries and narrow it down to 20. Once that is done, we will send an email to the Board asking you to vote on your favorite. This will narrow it down to 5 and then the Public will have a chance to vote for their favorite one out of the 5. We have received about 35 entries. Be on the lookout for the email. Pat Morgan suggested in-person voting from the public, we will look into this.

September was a busy month of Budget Consultations. This is a process where all the agencies report back to the district managers about their agency. The District Managers ask questions of each agency such as: staffing levels, complaints received, upcoming capital projects, etc. This helps with the budget priorities to know if there are areas within agencies that we need to ask our elected officials to support.

We will vote tonight on our Budget Priorities. Once that is complete, I will enter them into a computer system along with our District Needs Statement. This gets submitted to DCP and they send it to the appropriate agencies.

If the board office contacts you about a vote or something from the meeting, it is usually for the minutes. We have a deadline for these documents. Please do your best to respond as promptly as possible. If we have to wait for a response, it delays our ability to meet our goals and deadlines.

## MICHAEL CARLIER – DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY BOARDS & CONSTITUENT SERVICE, QUEENS BOROUGH HALL

Michael introduced himself, he has transitioned into the new Director of Community Boards for Borough President Richards. He left his contact information at the table, if anyone would to speak with him.

## Michael reported the following:

Community board member applications will open this January/February. The Borough President's Office would like the community board members to be diligent in their attendance and resubmitting your application. For the general public, we encourage you to apply.

I would like to acknowledge the community boards and civic organizations for their assistance in helping the Borough President identify the overgrown medians throughout Queens. The Borough President held a press conference in August urging the Department of Parks, the Department of Transportation, and the Department of Sanitation to come together to address these overgrown and litter-strewn medians. As a result of our partnership our office submitted 205 locations across Queens to the city agencies to address these neglected areas. The city agencies are working from the Northeast towards working their way down. We are working with Deputy Mayor Joshi. If there are any other locations that we have missed, please reach out.

Some events that are taking place in the month of October:

- Hispanic Heritage Month Celebration -Thursday, October 10 at 6 pm at the New York Hall of Science, 47-01 111th Street in Corona.
- Women's Health Fair -Sunday, October 13 from 2 pm to 5 pm at The Edward Davis Center, 118-35 Farmers Blvd. in St. Albans.

- Virtual Parent Advisory Board Meeting -Tuesday, October 15 at 6 pm via Zoom.
- LGBTQIA+ Resource Expo Saturday, October 19 at 10 am at Queens Borough Hall, 120-55 Queens Blvd. in Kew Gardens.
- College and Opportunity Fair Monday, October 21 from 4 pm to 7 pm at Queens Borough Hall, 120-55 Queens Blvd. in Kew Gardens.
- Halloween Family Film Night Beetlejuice Wednesday, October 23 at 6 pm at Queens Borough Hall,
   120-55 Queens Blvd. in Kew Gardens.

You can RSVP at <a href="mailto:queensbp@nyc.gov">queensbp@nyc.gov</a>

## **PUBLIC HEARING - FY26 CAPITAL AND EXPENSE BUDGET PRIORITIES**

Mark Laster reported in April all committees were given a list of the last cycle budget priorities. The committees reviewed the budget priorities and submitted their priorities. This is one of the opportunities for members to provide their input to this budget process. The office sent out a survey based on the priorities and was sent out to all committee chairs. The results of the survey were tabulated and distributed to all committee chairs and co-chairs, which they met to go over. You can review it on YouTube. In the past we developed a survey to go out to the public, this year we asked the city to develop a survey. Tonight, we will be finalizing all the priorities. We will start with the expense priorities; we are allowed up to 25 budget priorities. Several priorities will need to be dropped. We will then move to capital priorities, all of them will be submitted since we don't have 40 capital priorities. The members were asked to submit their changes before this meeting. We didn't receive any changes. The process tonight, is to raise your hand and submit your change, including the number of the priority you want to move, where you would like to move it to, and the reasons you want to move it. A second motion will be made, and the floor will be open for discussion. Based upon this discussion, I will ask either for a voice vote or do a roll call. Chair Dimitriadis will track all the changes on her sheet as well as the board members keeping track on their sheet.

Chair Beers-Dimitriadis went through the public comments report. This summer the city conducted a community survey on CB6's behalf which will inform the overall budget process for FY 2026. The community responded by stating their support for affordable housing in the district. The need to have quality of life issues addressed with consistency and the need for overall safety throughout the district. When it comes to their children, they would like to see further investment in school facilities and after-school programs. Cleanliness is a priority for our streets and parks. The need for park workers is clear to stay on top of the maintenance of our high traffic parks require. Getting around efficiently and safely the residents are asking for an increase in traffic and pedestrian safety. Also needing more consistent subway service.

The Community Board members asked questions.

## Expense Budget Priorities FY 2026 – Queens Community Board 6

Pat Morgan made a motion to move priority #7, basement apartment pilot to priority #26, the motion was seconded. The following members spoke about the motion: Heidi Chain, Martha Tucker, Kevin Ly, Kandra Clark, Pedro Rodriguez, Latrice Davis, and Keith Engel. The motion failed on a roll call.

Pat Morgan made a motion to move priority #24, transportation senior/disabled to priority #11, the motion was seconded. The following members spoke about the motion: Martha Tucker. Motion passes on a roll call vote.

Heidi Chain made a motion to move priority #18, the temporary Rego Park Library (during construction) to priority #13 the motion was seconded. The following members spoke about the motion: Bruce Grossberg, and Kevin Ly. Motion passes on a voice vote.

Salua Baida made a motion to move priority #36b, additional funding for kids in motion to priority #11, the motion was seconded. The following members spoke about the motion: Kevin Ly, and Keith Engel. The motion failed on a roll call vote.

Karen Imas made a motion to move priority #36a, signal timing Union Turnpike/Markwood Place/Park Lane to priority #11, the motion was seconded. Kevin Ly made a friendly amendment that the traffic/parking studies is right below signal timing Union Turnpike/Markwood Place/Park Lane South so that both priorities are in the top 25. Karen Imas accepted that friendly amendment to move up signal timing Union Turnpike/Markwood Place/Park Lane South above traffic/parking studies and was seconded. The following members spoke about the motion: Peter Beadle, Salua Baida, Bruce Grossberg, and Pedro Rodriguez. The motion failed on a roll call vote.

Kavish Batra made a motion priority #34, noise level monitoring to priority #15 city bike expansion, the motion was seconded. Salua Baida made a friendly amendment to swap priority #34 noise level monitoring with priority #21 open streets instead of priority #15 city bike expansion. Motion passes on a roll call vote.

Chair Dimitriadis made a motion to finalize the expense list as amended a voice vote was called, motion passed.

## Capital Budget Priorities FY 2026 - Queens Community Board 6

Karen Imas made a motion to add an additional priority #33 to participate in the DOT Plug NYC program and get an EV charger into the neighborhood. The motion was seconded, a voice vote was taken, the motion was carried.

Kevin Ly made a motion to add an additional priority #34, to install ADA-reserved parking. The following member spoke about the motion: Peter Beadle. The motion was seconded. A voice vote was taken, and the motion carried.

Pedro Rodriguez made a motion to add an additional priority #35 sound cameras to Rego Park and Forest Hills. The motion was seconded. A voice vote was taken, and the motion was carried.

Chair Beers-Dimitriadis asked if all Community Board Members were in favor of the Capital and Expense Budget Priorities as amended. All were in favor of a voice vote, with an abstention from Board Member John Dereszewski with expense item #1, supportive housing services.

The accepted budget priorities are as follows:

**Capital Budget Priorities** 

- 1. Senior Affordable Housing
- 2. Flood Mitigation
- 3. Additional School Seats

- 4. Supportive Housing Facility
- 5. Build New High School
- 6. Subway Elevators
- 7. Other affordable Housing
- 8. Elevators LIRR Station
- 9. Daylighting Intersections
- 10. Infrastructure to support additional housing
- 11. Biking Infrastructure
- 12. Austin to Metro Trolley
- 13. New Rego Park Library
- 14. School Safety Improvements
- 15. Public School ADA Accessibility
- 16. Library ADA Accessibility
- 17. Safer Subway Platforms
- 18. Subway CCTV Infrastructure
- 19. Trash Truck Parks
- 20. Upgrade Ehrenreich Park
- 21. Upgrade Willow Lake Playground
- 22. School Water Fountain Upgrades
- 23. Complete Streets
- 24. Business District Security Cameras
- 25. Intersection Safety Reconstruction
- 26. Noise Abatement Stadiums and Railroads
- 27. Upgrade Water Fountains (Parks)
- 28. Increase Water Pressure (Parks)
- 29. New Water Fountains (Parks)
- 30. Speed Humps, Curbs, Chicanes
- 31. New Recreational Sprinklers
- 32. NYPD Parking Facility
- 33. PLUG NYC Pilot Program
- 34. Designated on-street ADA Accessible Parking
- 35. Noise Cameras

## **Expense Budget Priorities**

- 1. Supportive Housing Services
- 2. Mental Health Response Team
- 3. Home Services for the Elderly
- 4. Meals on Wheels
- 5. 3K for all
- 6. Mental Healthcare for the uninsured
- 7. Basement Apartment Pilot
- 8. Crossing Guards
- 9. Local Food Pantries
- 10. Traffic / Parking Studies
- 11. Transportation Seniors / Disabled
- 12. Community Composting Programs
- 13. Temporary Rego Park Library (During Construction)

- 14. Additional City Park Workers
- 15. Expand Summer Rising
- 16. Beacon Programming
- 17. Citibike Expansion
- 18. Mental Health for Seniors
- 19. Aging in Place programs
- 20. Community Land Trust
- 21. Curbside Composting
- 22. Noise Level Monitoring
- 23. Forestry Services
- 24. Subway / Bus / Station Cleanliness
- 25. Special Rezoning Districts Study

#### CONSUMER AFFAIRS / CULTURAL AFFAIRS / ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

#### **Adult Use Cannabis Dispensary License Application:**

Token, 92-29 Queens Blvd, Unit CU-9, Rego Park (RP)

Token is a new retail cannabis store proposed for Rego Park, which will offer cannabis flowers and edibles, both of which are approved by the Office of Cannabis Management. Questions and comments were taken.

Gladys Sandoval made a motion to approve Token's application which was seconded by Sabah Munawar. A voice vote was taken, and all were in favor.

#### **Liquor License Applications:**

CB6 received the following new liquor license applications:

- 1. 100-05 Metropolitan Avenue Restaurant, 100-05 Metropolitan Avenue, Forest Hills The restaurant is Don Pollo. The only change is new owners. The operational method, will remain unchanged.
- Pio Pio Metro Inc., 101-21 Metropolitan Avenue, Forest Hills
   This is a Peruvian restaurant renowned for its rotisserie chicken and other traditional dishes.
   Established in Rego Park in 1994, it has since expanded to nine locations across New York City and Long Island

All new applications cited no reported issues from the 112th precinct and have received unanimous approval from the committee.

CB6 received the following renewal liquor license applications:

- 1. Yellowstone Sushi Inc., 66-73 Selfridge Street, Forest Hills
- 2. La Vigna, Inc., 100-11 Metropolitan Avenue, Forest Hills

All renewal applications have received unanimous approval from the committee, with no reported issues from the 112th precinct.

Sabah Munawar made a motion to accept the new and renewal liquor license which was seconded by Latrice Davis. A voice vote was taken, and all were in favor.

Heidi Chain reported that she read that La Vigna is opening up as a new restaurant, and didn't know if that is correct. District Manager Nolan will speak with La Vigna to find out if they are opening a new restaurant on the application they filed as a renewal.

#### LAW/BY-LAW COMMITTEE REPORT

Chair John Dereszewski reported the following:

The first item would create a new Article XXVII, which will create a new Finance and Personnel Committee. This item shall specifically give by-law status to the Finance and Personnel Committee, shall define its responsibilities, shall change the title of the Secretary of Finance of the Community Board to Secretary of Finance and Personnel of the Community Board, and shall provide further definition to the scope of that position's responsibilities.

#### **ARTICLE XXVII - Finance and Personnel Committee**

- 1. The Finance and Personnel Committee (the "Committee") shall be responsible for the monitoring and oversight of the expenditures of the Board's annual internal budget and, to assist the Board Chair's authority as agency head, shall monitor and annually evaluate the activities of the Board's District Manager.
- 2. The responsibilities noted in the preceding section shall be performed within the framework of a Statement of Fiscal and Personnel Oversight Responsibilities (the "Statement") that the Finance and Personnel Committee shall develop and periodically revise on an as-needed basis. The Statement shall specifically define and delineate the responsibilities the District Manager shall perform that shall constitute the criteria upon which the position will be evaluated on an annual basis. The development of the Statement shall be performed, whenever appropriate, in consultation with the District Manager and shall, at all times, be consistent with the New York City Charter and all other applicable laws, regulations, Civil Service provisions, and labor relations agreements.
- 3. Following the development of the Statement and approval by the Committee and the Board Chair, it shall be shared with the full Board.
- 4. When full Board approval is required involving any matter related to its internal budget, the Finance and Personnel Committee shall review the pertinent proposals and issue its recommendations to the full Board. It shall also advise the Chair on other fiscal, and personnel matters as needed and as requested by the Chair.
- 5. When appropriate and consistent with all pertinent laws and regulations, the Committee can hold meetings in a closed Executive Session.
- 6. The Committee shall consist of the members of the Executive Committee plus such additional members who shall be appointed by the Board Chair. No public members shall be eligible to serve on this Committee.
- 7. The Committee shall be chaired by the Secretary for Finance and Personnel of the Community Board.
- 8. Upon adoption of this bylaw amendment, the current title of Secretary of Finance of the Community Board shall be changed to Secretary of Finance and Personnel of the Community Board and all references to the Finance Committee shall be changed to Finance and Personnel.

The adoption of this by-law will also require some related changes to ARTICLE XII(6) of the by-laws. Specifically:

- 1. The title of Secretary of Finance of the Community Board shall be changed to Secretary of Finance and Personnel of the Community Board.
- 2. The current section C will be moved to section a, shall now say "Shall serve as Chair of the Finance Committee and Personnel Committee.

3. A new section b shall be added, which will say "Shall oversee that committee's activity in developing and revising the Statement of Fiscal and Personnel Oversight. Responsibilities as delineated in ARTICLE XXVII.

The current sections a, b, and d should then be reassigned to sections c, d, and e.

Questions and comments were given by: Kevin Ly, and Jean Silva.

Chair John Dereszewski made a motion to move that this amendment be adopted.

Kevin Ly made a motion to table the vote on the by-law's amendment until it has gone through a review from Borough Hall and through a union review. The motion was seconded by Kavish Batra, a roll call vote was taken and the motion failed. District Manager Nolan noted that the amendments impacted the DM role and it is not a unionized role.

Chair John Dereszewski made a motion on behalf of the committee; I move that this amendment be adopted and was seconded by Salua Baida. A roll call vote was taken 29 yes/3 no, and the motion passed.

Chair John Dereszewski then reported on the amended Article XVII, Section 1 clarifying the role of the board chair's supervision of the district manager. The language was changed saying that the district manager would report to the chair of the board and the borough president's office. The City Charter states that the district manager only reports to the chair. In some instances, the district manager needs to deal with the borough president's office, i.e. payroll. This doesn't mean that the district manager needs to report to the borough president. I would like to remove the by-law "as well as the Queens Borough President" from the last sentence in this section.

## Amendment to ARTICLE XVI(1)

This action will clarify the reporting framework regarding the District Manager by specifying that this position will solely report to the Board's Chair. To do this, it will eliminate the phrase "as well as the Queens Borough President" from the last sentence in this section. The addition of this phrase occurred during the comprehensive revision of the Board's By-laws that occurred several years ago and, frankly, was an error. It is totally inconsistent with the City Charter, which clearly specifies the Board's Chair as the DM's sole supervisor. The current text has the potential for causing undue confusion. While the DM does need to work closely with the Borough President's Office on a number of items, particularly those involving payroll matters, these do not even closely create a reporting relationship, and any concerns that might arise regarding this relationship will be addressed to the Board's Chair as the DM's supervisor.

On behalf of the committee, we all were unanimous on this motion. Chair John Dereszewski moved that this amendment be adopted and was seconded by Salua Baida. A roll call vote was taken, motion passed.

#### REPORTS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS' REPRESENTATIVES

#### COUNCILMEMBER LYNN SCHULMAN

Kevin McAleer reported the following:

- The public hearing for the City of Yes is October 22nd, please sign up to testify at council.nyc.gov/testify.
- Health Fair October 13th at Memorial Drive Forest Park, from 10 am–1 pm

#### QUEENS DISTRICT ATTORNEY MELINDA KATZ

Javier Figeroa reported the following:

• If you see any illegal cannabis shops, report them to the district attorney's office.

#### NEW YORK STATE ASSEMBLYMEMBER ANDREW HEVESI

Gianna Valente reported the following:

- Metro Village/Forest Hills Green team Cleanup October 19th from 10 am-12 pm, meet outside Aigner Chocolates, 103-02 Metropolitan Avenue.
- Halloween Writing and Poster Contest with Councilwoman Schulman's office for students in grades 1 through 5. You can submit your story or poster through mail or email to our office by Friday, October 25th. We will award one student from each grade and will hand out NYC Council citations to all participating students.

#### NEW YORK STATE SENATOR JOSEPH ADDABBO

Sean McCabe reported the following:

- Mammogram Van Sunday, October 13th from 9 am-4:30 pm van in front of their Middle Village Office. Call the office to sign up.
- Job Fair Friday, November 8th from 10 am-1 pm at Resorts World Casino.

#### **CONGRESSMEMBER GRACE MENG**

Jordan Goldes reported the following:

- Veteran Affairs to meet with a representative for veterans, located at VFW Post 551 in Middle Village.
- Sunday, October 27th, 9 am-2 pm apply for a new or renewal passport located at the Forest Hills Post Office.
- A new program has been launched by the State Department to allow people to register or renew their passport online.

The meeting adjourned at 10 pm.

The minutes are submitted by Maria Concolino, Community Service Aide.

CB 6 VOTING SHEET 10-9-24	Motion to move #7 to #26 Expense	Motion to move # 24 to #11 Expense	Motion to move #18 to #13 Expense	Motion to move #36b to #11 Expense
EDGAR ALFONSECA	N	N		N
DAVID ARONOV	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
ROBERT ASHE	N	N		N
JULIETH AVILA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
ANISIA AYON	N	N		N
SALUA BAIDA	N	Y		Y
KAVISH BATRA	Y	Y	A	Y
PETER BEADLE	N	N	L	N
HOWARD BIRNBAUM	N	N	L	N
HEIDI CHAIN	Y	Y	2	Y
GINA CHEN	N	NOT PRESENT	I	NOT PRESENT
L.T. CIACCIO	N	FOR VOTE N	N	FOR VOTE N
KANDRA CLARK	N	N	1,	N
LATRICE DAVIS	N	N	F	N
JOHN DERESZEWSKI	N	N	A	N
HEATHER DIMITRIADIS	N	N	V	
KEITH ENGEL	N	N	О	N
TAMARA GAVRIELOF	Y	Y	R	Y
BRUCE GROSSBERG	N	N		N
KAREN IMAS	N	Y		Y
SARINA JAIN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
MATT FERNANDEZ KONIGSBERG	Y	NOT PRESENT FOR VOTE		NOT PRESENT FOR VOTE
MARCELLE LASHLEY-KABORE	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
MARK LASTER	N	N		N
KEVIN LY	Y	Y		Y
DR. RENEE MEHRRA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
PAT MORGAN	Y	N		N
SABAH MUNAWAR	N	N		N
NATALIE PIENKOWSKA	N	Y		Y
JESSICA POORAN	N	N		N
JOI PRATT	Y	Y		Y
DIANA RACHNAEV	Y	N		N
PEDRO RODRIGUEZ	N	N		N
SHARI ROLNICK	N	N		N
MATTHEW SALTON	N	N		N
GLADYS SANDOVAL	N	N		N
DAVID SCHANTZ	N	N		N
HERBERT SCHONHAUT	N	N		N
AMIT PRATAP SHAH	N	N	<del> </del>	N
EUGENE SHVARTSMAN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
JEAN C. SILVA	N	N		N
MARTHA TUCKER	N	N		N
BRENTLY WINSTEAD	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
EDWIN WONG	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
			ABSENT	
EPHRAIM ZAKRY	ABSENT 28 NO/ 8 YES	ABSENT 26 NO/ 8 YES	ADSENI	ABSENT 25 NO/ 8 YES
TOTALS:	20 NO/ 0 1 ES	20 NO/ 0 1 E3		23 NO/ 0 1ED

CB 6 VOTING SHEET 10-9-24	Motion to move #36a to #11 Expense	Motion to move #34 to #21 Expense	Motion to Accept Expense Budget Priorities As Amended	Motion to add PLUGNYC to Capital Budget Priorities
EDGAR ALFONSECA	N	N		
DAVID ARONOV	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
ROBERT ASHE	N	Υ		
JULIETH AVILA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
ANISIA AYON	N	Υ	1	1
SALUA BAIDA	N	Υ	А	A
KAVISH BATRA	Υ	Υ	L	L
PETER BEADLE	Υ	Υ	L	L
HOWARD BIRNBAUM	Υ	Υ		
HEIDI CHAIN	Υ	Υ	1	I
GINA CHEN	NOT PRESENT FOR VOTE	NOT PRESENT FOR VOTE	N	N
L.T. CIACCIO	N	N		
KANDRA CLARK	N	Υ	F	F
LATRICE DAVIS	Υ	Υ	А	A
JOHN DERESZEWSKI	N	Υ	V	V
HEATHER DIMITRIADIS	Υ	Υ	0	0
KEITH ENGEL	N	Υ	R	R
TAMARA GAVRIELOF	Υ	Υ		
BRUCE GROSSBERG	N	N		
KAREN IMAS	Υ	Υ		
SARINA JAIN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
MATT FERNANDEZ KONIGSBERG	NOT PRESENT FOR VOTE	NOT PRESENT FOR VOTE		
MARCELLE LASHLEY-KABORE	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
MARK LASTER	N	Υ		
KEVIN LY	Υ	Υ		
DR. RENEE MEHRRA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
PAT MORGAN	N	Υ		
SABAH MUNAWAR	N	Υ		
NATALIE PIENKOWSKA	Υ	Υ		
JESSICA POORAN	N	Υ		
JOI PRATT	N	N		
DIANA RACHNAEV	N	Υ		
PEDRO RODRIGUEZ	N	N		
SHARI ROLNICK	N	N		
MATTHEW SALTON	Υ	N		
GLADYS SANDOVAL	N	Υ		
DAVID SCHANTZ	N	Y		
HERBERT SCHONHAUT	Υ	Υ		
AMIT PRATAP SHAH	N	Υ	*	₩
EUGENE SHVARTSMAN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
JEAN C. SILVA	N	Υ		
MARTHA TUCKER	Υ	N		
BRENTLY WINSTEAD	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
EDWIN WONG	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
EPHRAIM ZAKRY	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
TOTALS:				
	21 NO/ 13 YES	8 NO/ 26 YES		

CB 6 VOTING SHEET 10-9-24	Motion to add Designated ADA Parking to Capital Budget Priorities	Motion to add Noise Cameras to Capital Budget Priorities	Motion to Accept Capital Budget Priorities As Amended	
EDGAR ALFONSECA				
DAVID ARONOV	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
ROBERT ASHE				
JULIETH AVILA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
ANISIA AYON				
SALUA BAIDA	А	A	А	
KAVISH BATRA	L	L	L	
PETER BEADLE	L	L	L	
HOWARD BIRNBAUM				
HEIDI CHAIN	1	I	I	
GINA CHEN	N	N	N	
L.T. CIACCIO				
KANDRA CLARK	F	F	F	
LATRICE DAVIS	А	А	А	
JOHN DERESZEWSKI	V	V	V	
HEATHER DIMITRIADIS	0	0	0	
KEITH ENGEL	R	R	R	
TAMARA GAVRIELOF				
BRUCE GROSSBERG				
KAREN IMAS				
SARINA JAIN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
MATT FERNANDEZ KONIGSBERG				
MARCELLE LASHLEY-KABORE	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
MARK LASTER				
KEVIN LY				
DR. RENEE MEHRRA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
PAT MORGAN				
SABAH MUNAWAR				
NATALIE PIENKOWSKA				
JESSICA POORAN				
JOI PRATT				
DIANA RACHNAEV				
PEDRO RODRIGUEZ				
SHARI ROLNICK				
MATTHEW SALTON				
GLADYS SANDOVAL				
DAVID SCHANTZ				
HERBERT SCHONHAUT				
AMIT PRATAP SHAH				
EUGENE SHVARTSMAN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
JEAN C. SILVA	<b>*</b>	<b>\</b>	₩	
MARTHA TUCKER				
BRENTLY WINSTEAD	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
EDWIN WONG	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
EPHRAIM ZAKRY	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT	
TOTALS:				
<del>1-</del> -		1		

CB 6 VOTING SHEET 10-9-24	CANNABIS DISPENSARY APPLICATION TOKEN RETAIL 92-29 QUEENS BLVD. REGO PARK	NEW LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION	RENEWAL LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION
EDGAR ALFONSECA			
DAVID ARONOV	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
ROBERT ASHE			
JULIETH AVILA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
ANISIA AYON			
SALUA BAIDA			
KAVISH BATRA	A	A	A
PETER BEADLE	L	L	L
HOWARD BIRNBAUM	L	L	L
HEIDI CHAIN			
GINA CHEN	I		I
L.T. CIACCIO	N	N	N
KANDRA CLARK			
LATRICE DAVIS	F	F	F
JOHN DERESZEWSKI	A	A	A
HEATHER DIMITRIADIS	V	V	V
KEITH ENGEL	0	O	О
TAMARA GAVRIELOF	R	R	R
BRUCE GROSSBERG			
KAREN IMAS			
SARINA JAIN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
MATT FERNANDEZ KONIGSBERG			
MARCELLE LASHLEY-KABORE	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
MARK LASTER			
KEVIN LY			
DR. RENEE MEHRRA	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
PAT MORGAN			
SABAH MUNAWAR			
NATALIE PIENKOWSKA			
JESSICA POORAN			
JOI PRATT			
DIANA RACHNAEV	1		
PEDRO RODRIGUEZ	1		
SHARI ROLNICK			
MATTHEW SALTON			
GLADYS SANDOVAL			
DAVID SCHANTZ			
HERBERT SCHONHAUT	1		
AMIT PRATAP SHAH	1	<b>+</b>	<b>+</b>
EUGENE SHVARTSMAN	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
JEAN C. SILVA			
MARTHA TUCKER	1		
BRENTLY WINSTEAD	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
EDWIN WONG	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
EPHRAIM ZAKRY	ABSENT	ABSENT	ABSENT
TOTALS:	1100111		7100111
IUIALS.	<u>I</u>		